Digest of the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine (March 1976)

Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

Follow this and additional works at: http://digitalcommons.pcom.edu/digest

Part of the Medical Education Commons, and the Osteopathic Medicine and Osteopathy Commons

Recommended Citation
http://digitalcommons.pcom.edu/digest/109

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by DigitalCommons@PCOM. It has been accepted for inclusion in Digest by an authorized administrator of DigitalCommons@PCOM. For more information, please contact library@pcom.edu.
POLICY OF NONDISCRIMINATION
PCOM admits students of any race, color, sex, national and ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the college. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national and ethnic origin in administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship and loan programs and other college administered programs.

CONTENTS:
FOUNDERS DAY/ALUMNI DINNER DANCE .......... 2
REUNIONS ...................................... 6
ALUMNI BOARD MEETS .......................... 9
NEW APPOINTMENTS ............................ 10
BOARD MEMBERS ELECTED ..................... 12
NEWS FROM THE COLLEGE ...................... 13
NEWS FROM THE HOSPITAL AND HEALTH CARE CENTERS .......... 16
PEOPLE ......................................... 20
ALUMNI NEWS BRIEFS ...................... 24
FACULTY NOTES ................................ 25
IN MEMORIAM ................................. 27

THE COVER:
This month's cover is designed by Susan Shay using scenes from a page in the 1926 Synapsis. If any Alumni recognize themselves, we'd like to hear from them. The March issue is dedicated to the Class of 1926, who celebrated their 50th anniversary at the Founders Day-Alumni Dinner Dance. Congratulations!

The editors sincerely regret several errors in the listing of Alumnae in the December '75 issue. Two Alumni were erroneously listed as women - Clare W. Elliott, D.O. '50 (who is the FATHER of five) and Berel B. Arrow, D.O. '66. We extend our apologies.

We also regret the omission of Dorothy Jean Sivitz, D.O. in the Class of 1949, an outstanding student, intern, resident and physician.

We are grateful to those interested Alumni who sent the corrections and to all those who were kind enough to write compliments on the issue.
"It was the best of times ............... it was the worst of times".

What determines the "best of times" for an endeavor? Founders Day inevitably recalls the struggles of an emerging school of osteopathic medicine in an allopathically oriented city. Seventy seven years later, over 3500 Alumni bear living testimony to the success of that struggle.

Today, we face a different struggle. Certainly, if the founders of PCOM were to see our profession's present status, they would cite 1976 as being "the best of times." But the fight for identity which they waged is yet very present, in a different form.

The challenge today is that of substantiating the difference that is osteopathic medicine in our patient care, in our education, and in our health delivery facilities.

The distribution of health manpower and health care facilities has become a source of major concern to consumers and, correspondingly, legislators on both a national and state level. The question of separate consideration of osteopathic education and practice is a very real one. On a national level and in many states, osteopathic associations are actively involved in seeking legislative mandate for separate recognition of osteopathic medicine as a distinct school of medicine and practice.

The most important activity, however, does not come from the national and state level; it comes from that of the individual osteopathic physician. Day in and day out, it is up to the individual physician to demonstrate that osteopathic medicine is, in fact, "different."

Today is the "best of times" to prove that osteopathic medicine has an identity of its own.
Philadelphia '76 —
The Birth of a Tradition

The Bicentennial year and the Bicentennial city saw the birth of a PCOM tradition on January 24. The College successfully combined Founders Day ceremonies (traditionally held in January) with Alumni Weekend (traditionally held in June). The resulting Founders Day/Alumni Dinner Dance was a resounding success, as more than 700 members of the PCOM family dined and danced in the ballroom of the Marriott Motel. The decor was red, white and blue; the atmosphere festive and cordial and the Alumni reunions were warm with friendship and nostalgia.

Highlight of the evening was the presentation of the O.J. Snyder Memorial Medal—the highest award given by the College—to Mortimer J. Sullivan, D.O., '21, Montclair, N.J., general practitioner, radiologist and 10-year member of the Board of Trustees. The medal is traditionally awarded in recognition of leadership and service to the College and to the osteopathic profession.
Dr. Sullivan's professional career combines a large general practice with specialty study and certification in radiology. He has served as president of the Essex County Osteopathic Association, president of the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons and delegate to the American Osteopathic Association.

In his introduction Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., PCOM’s president, lauded the eminent physician for his activity in the American Osteopathic Association, both on a national and state level.

"During the years that the American Medical Association pursued amalgamation vigorously and, in fact, succeeded in California," said Dr. Rowland, "Dr. Sullivan was one who quietly fought, as a member of the House of Delegates and officer of his state association, for the continued growth of osteopathic medicine as a separate and distinct profession."

Class of 1926 Honored

Also honored at the Dinner Dance were C. Foster True, D.O., '22, Cranston, R.I. and William O. Kingsbury, D.O., '26, New York City, who received certificates of honor from the Alumni Association.

All the reunion classes were greeted with applause, with special plaudits going to the Class of 1926, who were celebrating their 50th reunion. Specially-designed medallions were presented to each class member by Dr. Alfred A. Grilli, president of the Alumni Association. (See page 2.)

The dance climaxed a weekend of postdoctoral seminars designed to benefit the practicing physician.

The Convocation

On Friday, January 23, a Founders Day Assembly was convened at the College to introduce the O.J. Snyder Memorial Medal recipient to the student body. The ceremonies included a brief memorial service for deceased members of the faculty, a commemoration of the founders by President Rowland, and the address of the honored guest, Dr. Mortimer J. Sullivan.

Dr. Sullivan congratulated PCOM students for belonging to the growing progressive profession of osteopathic medicine, a profession that has made startling advancements in the past 10 years.

To accent those advancements, Dr. Sullivan recalled the year 1962, when, as a member of the House of Delegates of the AOA, he heard the offer of the American Medical Association to amalgamate the osteopathic profession into allopathic medicine. This was followed by the historic resolution of the AOA, not to be "judged, dominated or absorbed."

"All of this activity seemed to serve as a challenge to the osteopathic profession," recalled Dr. Sullivan as he outlined the strides of accomplishment — increased federal grants, unlimited practice
rights by the states, the acceptance of D.O.'s as commissioned officers in the Medical Corps, the increased membership in the AOA. "Today," he noted, "the American Osteopathic Association has new partners, the government and the public... There are many public health problems which concern both the osteopathic and the allopathic profession and their patients. It is toward the solution of these health problems that the AOA offers its complete cooperation in the public interest."

Dr. Sullivan concluded by mentioning the opportunity of the D.O. to be a complete physician providing complete health care.

“Our special interest in palpatory diagnosis, scanning of the musculoskeletal system and manipulation is an asset. Manipulation is a therapeutic means and tool through which the basic philosophy of osteopathic medicine can be expressed... As long as we practice osteopathic manipulative therapy, along with our other modalities, we will remain a distinct school of medicine.”

Following the assembly a delegation of representatives from the Alumni Association, faculty, professional staff and student body visited the nearby gravesite of O.J. Snyder D.O., co-founder of the College, to place a memorial wreath.

Founders Day 1976 is best summed up in the words of President Rowland in his commemoration at the Assembly,

“The importance of the 200th birthday of our nation and the celebration of our Founders Day is a very personal one. For, in commemorating these occasions we are given the opportunity to reflect on the struggles of those who have made the occasion worth commemorating. Their struggles must be our struggle; their hope, our hope; and their dreams, our commitment.”

Mortimer J. Sullivan D.O., recipient of PCOM's highest honor, addresses the faculty and students at a Founders Day assembly, flanked by Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr. (left), president of the College, and the bust of co-founder, O.J. Snyder D.O. (right).

Ralph Tomei D.O., F.A.C.O.I., assistant professor and chairman of the division of endocrinology and metabolic diseases, conducts a seminar on Diabetes Mellitus during Alumni Weekend. Ten seminars designed to benefit the practicing physician were offered in Evans Hall over a two-day period.


Alumni may order copies of the reunion photographs by sending $2.50 to the Public Relations Department. Please make check or money order payable to PCOM. No cash, please. And please specify which of the two 1956 photos is requested.

CLASSES OF 1931 and 1936. (l-r) Foster D. Clark '31, Tarrington, Conn.; H. Cory Walling '36, Morristown N.J.


And more 1956 ➞


Alumni Board Meets in Semiannual Session

PCOM's Alumni Board of Directors convened their semianual meeting at a luncheon held on January 23. Alfred A. Grilli D.O. '48, president of the Alumni Association, presided.

Dr. Grilli reported on the status of the Association for the first half of the fiscal year. More interest and involvement has been demonstrated by the officers and Alumni assigned to the various committees promising one of the Association's best years.

The historian, Paul T. Lloyd D.O. '23 gave the report for his committee, mentioning that books, reports and photographs of PCOM's early days have been collected, accumulating more information on the College and Alumni Association. The emeritus professor of radiology cited many areas which will continue to be researched for pertinent history.

Paul Gebert, the executive director of the Alumni Association, reported on the expanding good will and cooperation between the College and the Alumni Association. He recommended that a shorter, simpler and more definitive set of by-laws be written to allow for the changing geographical locations of Alumni. Mr. Daniel Santillo, the new assistant to the executive director, was introduced to the Board.

A "State of the College" message was presented by Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., who discussed the future expansion of the College and the role of the Alumni Association in assisting plans and policies. His report was well received and action was taken on several of his proposals.

The Membership Committee, chaired by Michael Sutula D.O. '59, reported that paid memberships and life memberships are in excess of the number paid last year at the same time. The goal is 2,000 paid memberships by the end of the fiscal year.

A. Archie Feinstein D.O. '42, reported that student loans had been fulfilled for the $10,000 allocated for 1975-76. A motion was passed to increase the amount to $15,000 for next year. The funds will be allocated to fourth-year students.
The President announced the following new appointments since January, 1976.

J. Brendan Wynne, D.O. '56 — chairman and professor of the division of orthopedic surgery.

Prior to accepting the appointment at PCOM, Dr. Wynne served as chairman of the division of orthopedic surgery at Cranston General Hospital, Cranston, R.I., where he has been a member of the board of directors since 1975. He is a past president of the Rhode Island Society of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons and has served on the board of the American Osteopathic Academy of Orthopedics.

The new chairman is a graduate of Providence College and PCOM. He then served a three-year residency in orthopedic and traumatic surgery at Grandview Hospital, Dayton, Ohio. He had been an active member of the medical staff at Cranston General since the completion of his residency training in 1961 and received certification in orthopedics in 1967.

The new chairman is one of the original incorporators and board members of both the New England Foundation for Osteopathic Medicine and the Rhode Island Professional Service Review Organization, Inc. He served on the board of directors of Health Planning Council, Inc. and is a fellow of the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons.

Alfred A. Meltzer — administrator of the Hospital of PCOM.

Mr. Meltzer, a native of New York, served as associate executive director of Bronx Municipal Hospital Center, a 969-bed acute care municipal hospital facility, prior to accepting his position at PCOM.

He has been associated with the New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation since 1965, having served as assistant administrator at Long Island Jewish Medical Center until 1971, and as associate director and later associate executive director at Queens Hospital Center from 1971 to 1975.

He received a bachelor's degree from Brooklyn College and a master's degree in business administration from Hofstra University. The new administrator has also received faculty appointments as lecturer at St. John's University's College of Pharmacy and Allied Health Professions and at the Center to Promote Health Care.
Studies in Scarsdale, N. Y. He is a member of Mu Gamma Tau, national management honorary society.

Mr. Meltzer is a veteran of the U.S. Army Medical Corps and worked as a laboratory technician before entering the field of hospital administration in 1963.

He and his wife Shirley, both active in community affairs, have two daughters — Marsha, 15, and Caren, 11. The Meltzer family has recently moved from Little Neck, N. Y. to Merion Station, Pa.

Robert A. Bressler, of Haver­town—director of financial affairs, with responsibility for the entire fiscal operation of the College, Hospital and Health Care Centers.

Mr. Bressler has been a partner of the accounting firm of Laventhol and Horwath since 1955. His responsibilities there included directing the activities of the management advisory services in the health care division of the Philadelphia office and coordinating the firm’s national management advisory services inspection program. He also taught a course in the firm’s continuing education program as well as for the Pennsylvania Institute of CPA’s.

Mr. Bressler received a bachelor’s degree from the University of Pennsylvania and has taken graduate courses in accounting, budgeting and statistics at Wharton’s Evening School of Finance and Commerce and at Drexel Institute of Technology. He is a certified public accountant.

He and his wife Elayne have three children.


Dr. England has been a member of PCOM’s faculty since 1969 and currently holds the rank of assistant professor in the department of general practice. In addition, she served as physician for the School Health Services of the Philadelphia school district from 1955 to 1976.

The new director is a graduate of Houghton College and PCOM. She is a fellow and diplomate of the American College of General Practitioners in Osteopathic Medicine and Surgery, is a diplomate of the National Board of Examiners for Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons and is certified in general practice.

Dr. England is an active member of several professional organizations, among them the American Academy of Osteopathy, the American College of General Practitioners and the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons.

Robert P. Fink, Ph.D., of Drexel Hill — assistant professor of anatomy.

Dr. Fink received a bachelor’s degree from Clark University in Worcester, Mass. and a Ph.D. in neurobiology from the University of Pennsylvania. He has authored several scientific papers which have appeared in professional journals.

Prior to accepting the appointment at PCOM, Dr. Fink was a postdoctoral member of the Institute of Neurological Science at the University of Pennsylvania. From 1970 to 1975 he worked as a predoctoral trainee in the university’s department of anatomy.

Dr. Fink has served as a research assistant at the Monell Chemical Senses Center at the U. of P.; in the biology department of Clark University; in the neuroanatomy laboratory at Massachusetts Institute of Technology and in the department of neuroanatomy and neurophysiology at Walter Reed Army Institute of Research.

From 1961 to 1964 he served as a clinical laboratory technologist in the U.S. Army, where he served in the 10th Evacuation Hospital in Wurzburg, Germany and at the Medical Dispensary in Fort Meyer, Virginia.

Dr. Fink is married to the former Marcia Fink and has four children.
Judge J. Sydney Hoffman, chairman of PCOM's Board of Trustees, announced the election of two new members to the Board at the meeting held on March 11. The new members are F. Reeve Williams of Wayne, Pa. and Melvin C. Howell of Philadelphia.

Prior to his retirement in 1974, Mr. F. Reeves Williams served as president and board member of the Girard Investment Company and the Girard Consumer Discount Company. In addition, he was vice president and board member of the First American Industrial Bank in Denver, Colorado, and a member of the board of Central Valley Company, Inc.

Mr. Williams maintained active membership in a number of professional organizations, including the National Consumer Finance Association and the Consumer Credit Management Program and served as chairman of the Pennsylvania Consumer Finance Association. He is a member of the Union League and a council member-at-large and member of the advisory council of the Boy Scouts of America's Valley Forge Council.

The new board member is a World War II veteran of the U.S. Navy. He is married to the former Chrystal H. Rutherford and has one son, Captain Reeve N. Williams, a career army officer.

Melvin C. Howell is director of product development for Howell Brothers Chemical Laboratories, at 54th and Race Sts., of which he is co-founder. He also manages Howell's Pharmacy, a retail community pharmacy founded by his parents, Mr. and Mrs. Edward Howell. In addition, Mr. Howell serves as director of pharmaceutical services at the Stephen Smith Geriatric Center and as consulting pharmacist to St. Ignatius Nursing Home.

Mr. Howell is on the board of several organizations, including Better Family Planning, Inc., Haven House, Inc., the Carver Loan and Investment Co., Inc. and Board of City Trusts. He is a past president of the Philadelphia Mutual Drug Association, and the Eastern Cosmetic Manufacturers Association. He has also served as vice president of the Pa. Negro State Association of Medicine, Dentistry and Pharmacy.

The new board member attended Philadelphia public schools and graduated from Temple University’s School of Pharmacy. He served as a chemist with the U.S. Navy and was stationed at the Philadelphia Naval Base.

Mr. Howell is married to the former Thelma Truitt and has a son, Melvin Truitt Howell.
Chancellor Frederic H. Barth recently attended the 200th anniversary dinner of the Union League in Philadelphia, inaugurating the Bicentennial Year. Accompanied by (l-r) Robert Fraider, director of purchasing, and Mrs. Sophia Barth, dean of women, Dr. Barth greets Burton H. Etherington, Jr., president of the league, and the Honorable Sherman W. Tribbitt, governor of Delaware.

Basketball Team Wins Fourth League Championship
by Bob Pascall '79

Sparked by several ex-college stars, PCOM won a fourth Professional League Basketball championship by beating Villanova Law School (64-60). Wins against previously undefeated Temple Medical (65-52) and Podiatry (90-80) revealed the osteopathic power underneath deft shooting and ball handling abilities. Led by ex-St. Joseph's ball players 6'4” Jack McPhilimy '78, 6'7” Kevin Furey '78 and surprise freshman 6'5” "Jungle" Jim Dale, the PCOM five were strong on both offensive and defensive boards. The front court was deep, with ex-West-Pointer Jim Oxley '78 and Bob Oristaglio '76, the starters and excellent depth provided by Mark Avart '79, Jack Lang '77, Chuck Diakon '76 and Bill Finan '78.

Court enthusiasts cheered the "Mens et Manus" boys, who finished the season with an unblemished record and captured their fourth straight city Professional League crown. The team has a 34-game winning streak.

Team Roster
Kevin Furey ’78
Jim Dale ’79
Bob Oristaglio ’76
Sam Stever ’78
Craig Critchley ’78
Chuck Diakon ’76

Basketball Team Wins Fourth League Championship

Student Chapter of ACGP Sponsors Seminar

More than fifty student physicians and 11 D.O.'s participated in the first one-day seminar sponsored by PCOM's student chapter of the American College of General Practitioners in December. Dr. Rowland welcomed the participants to the day's session, which included lectures by members of PCOM's faculty. Doctors who participated were approved for 7 CME credit hours in category 1-A. The lectures, covering such areas as diabetes, arthritis, cardiology, gynecology, psychiatry, psychosomatic diseases and hypochondria, were all geared to the general practitioner.

Second-year student Ira Stark, president of the student chapter of the ACGP, designed the program.
PCOM’s annual Medicine Cup this year was entitled “Faculty’s Revenge” as the Faculty team, captained by Albert D’Alonzo D.O., assistant professor and chairman of the division of cardiology, won 13-10. There were cries of “Ringer” and “Too many men on the ice,” but no one paid any attention as everybody wins the Medicine Cup, which is played for the benefit of the student scholarship fund. The student team was ably led by Eli Jacobs ’77 and coached by Bill Pascone, cafeteria manager.

Questionable techniques were outshone by spirit, enthusiasm and good sportsmanship. Between periods the Students Wives’ Association chanced off a Dodge Colt, also for the benefit of the student scholarship fund.
PCOM's department of radiology, under the direction of Robert L. Meals, D.O., has recently acquired a Varian 4MeV linear accelerator for the treatment of cancer. The linear accelerator, or "linac," is able to destroy cancerous tissue by accelerating electron particles to high energies and directing a sharply focused beam to the affected area. The Hospital of PCOM is one of two hospitals in the entire osteopathic profession having a linear accelerator.

This summer, a special room was prepared to house the sophisticated machinery. The project, under the direction of the radiology department, was implemented with the valuable assistance of the department of engineering-maintenance and work-study students (Stephen Shaub '78, Martin Blume '78, Arnold Koriakin '79) at a considerable cost savings to PCOM. To provide an atmosphere of tranquility so
that patients can feel more at ease while under therapy, the room is carpeted on all four walls, floor and ceiling and has a backlighted color transparency of a mountain scene on one wall. The carpeting also helps decrease the amount of sound given off by the machine.

Explains radiation physicist David Kusner, "To the average patient with cancer, the knowledge that he is being treated by a machine that emits radiation of four million electron volts energy may cause stress. Our purpose is to make him comfortable and ease his anxieties so that he will return for needed treatment."

Both the linear accelerator and the cobalt unit are used as modern methods of radiation therapy in the treatment of cancer. The advantage of this technology over traditional radiation therapy is that this radiation passes more easily through bony structure and also spares the skin from burns. Because the beam can be sharply directed to the cancer, it is easier to protect normal tissue. The result is that the patient can receive a sufficient dose of radiation with a minimal amount of discomfort.

PCOM's department of radiology houses extensive facilities for the detection and treatment of cancer, including: isotope studies; computer dosimetry and treatment planning; polytomography and ultrasound for the localization of tumors. Orthovoltage and superficial energy therapy equipment, extensive radium and cesium facilities and Cobalt-60 teletherapy equipment are also available for the treatment of cancer.

Memorial Gifts Honor Physicians

Two distinguished osteopathic physicians were recently memorialized at PCOM's Hospital through Memorial Gifts Honor Physicians

The dedication of the physical therapy room in PCOM's Hospital was attended by Dr. Rowland, Mrs. Pedano, Rodney Buckham, chief physical therapist and Alfred Meltzer, administrator.
the donation of equipment in their names by the Women's Guild.

An electric treatment table was presented to the Emergency Room in honor of the late Harry Binder D.O., former director of emergency room services and assistant professor of surgery. Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., president, joined members of the Guild in brief ceremonies in the ER on January 9, as Mrs. Nicholas Pedano, president of the Guild, unveiled a plaque on the table in memory of Dr. Binder.

Dr. Binder was a distinguished member of PCOM's faculty and professional staff for 38 years. A 1936 graduate of the College, Dr. Binder joined the faculty in the department of microbiology after graduation. Later, he completed a residency in general surgery and was appointed to the department of surgery. He died in December 1974.

On March 8, the Hospital's physical therapy room was dedicated in memory of Joseph L. Hayes D.O., former professor and chairman of the department of physical therapy. Electrotherapy, hydrotherapy and exercise equipment have been donated to the room over a period of years by the Women's Guild.

On hand for the dedication were Dr. Rowland, Mr. Alfred Meltzer, hospital administrator, and members of the guild. A short tribute to Dr. Hayes was read by Mrs. Spencer Bradford, president-elect of the Guild.

Dr. Hayes was a 1927 graduate of the College and a member of the faculty and professional staff for 38 years. He joined the faculty as an instructor in the department of internal medicine and fourteen years later transferred to the physical therapy department. Dr. Hayes died in July, 1970.
business office personnel. The new health care center has 12 rooms available for patient service and will be open Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. Specialty clinics conducted at the center include pediatrics; obstetrics and gynecology; eye, ear, nose and throat; skin, podiatry and others. A 10-passenger van runs a daily schedule to transport patients to the Hospital of PCOM at City Avenue when additional services or treatment become necessary.

The building at Cambria Street, which had formerly served as a liquor store, was redesigned and rebuilt by members of the engineering/maintenance department, under the direction of Charles Keating, director. The glass storefront was remodeled and bricked up; wall-to-wall carpeting was installed and the area partitioned into separate offices and examining booths. The result is bright (new lighting was installed), colorful (partitions are orange and yellow), and functional.

**A Second Look at Roxborough**

The Roxborough-Manayunk Health Care Center has come a long way since it opened in October of 1973. Its patient census has increased 73 percent in two years. And Katherine England D.O., the center's new director, believes that the increase in patients is a reflection of the quality of care provided for area residents.

The Center occupies ten rooms on the second floor of the Salvation Army Social Service Rehabilitation Center. And Salvation Army residents as well as families in the surrounding community take advantage of the complete primary diagnostic and therapeutic services.

Specialty clinics are available weekly in internal medicine, obstetrics and gynecology, pediatrics, surgery, physical therapy and podiatry. Other specialty services are available on an on-call basis.

In addition to providing health care through the specialty services, osteopathic manipulative therapy is used in the diagnosis and treatment of various problems.

Says Dr. England, "We instruct student-physicians to administer osteopathic manipulative treatment to each patient, unless it is contra-indicated. Even in treating the patient with a cold or bronchitis, osteopathic treatment can be helpful in improving lymphatic drainage and enhancing the body's natural defense mechanisms. Frequently internal problems, such as gall bladder disease and ulcers, can be detected by observing changes along the paraspinal musculature during the osteopathic examination."

Along with a complete medical history and physical diagnosis, the examining physician completes an osteogram on each patient, which indicates the location of impaired or altered functions of components of the body framework.

Dr. England was appointed director of the Health Care Center in January. (See page 11).
"Leaders are not always obvious. They are not always publicized. And their contribution is sometimes sheer hard work behind the scenes." — Introduction of Morthimer J. Sullivan D.O. by Dr. Thomas M. Rowland at Founders Day Ceremonies, 1976

For more than 50 years Mortimer J. Sullivan D.O. has served his profession and his fellow man as a dedicated osteopathic physician and radiologist, loyal Alumnus and a strong but quiet influence "for the continued growth of osteopathic medicine as a separate and distinct profession."

This quiet man with the shy smile and soft-spoken manner conceals a determination that led him through years of graduate studies to learn everything he could about his profession, and a strength that has propelled him to leadership in New Jersey county and state osteopathic societies and a term in the House of Delegates of the AOA for two crucial years.

His years as a student at PCOM, interrupted by a stint in the Navy during World War I, were marked by that same strength and determination to learn. He recalled, in a recent interview, sneaking into Lankenau Hospital to watch surgery, since in those days D.O.'s were not allowed to study in allopathic hospitals.

After graduation in 1921 he served an internship at PCOM's Hospital, then at 19th and Spring Garden Streets, and spent the next two years studying radiology — first with Francis Finnerty D.O. (the first osteopathic radiologist in the area) at St. Mary's Hospital, Orange, N.J. and later at Orange Memorial Hospital and Metcalf Foundation for Radiology. By 1924 he was engaged in clinical research at New York's Columbia University.

Dr. Sullivan returned to PCOM in 1935, now at 48th and Spruce Streets, for graduate studies in medicine and surgery. But his interest in radiology was uppermost. Later studies included radiation physics at Mt. Sinai
Hospital in New York City, and in 1952 he was certified in radiology by the American Osteopathic Board of Radiology.

Between studies and assignments, he married and reared a family of five children, three of whom were on hand to watch with pride the presentation of the O.J. Snyder Memorial Medal to their father.

There was also time and energy to help found, with the assistance of George Northup D.O. '39, West Essex General Hospital at Livingston, N.J., where Dr. Sullivan is currently a member of the staff, and where he served as president of the professional staff.

Looking at PCOM today, Dr. Sullivan applauds the growth and development of an intensive scholastic program and a strong faculty.

"In the early days," he said, "I guess we turned out well because we worked hard, but we did not have an intensive program developed for us. The curriculum and faculty have progressed to a degree of excellence today."

Dr. Sullivan's reminiscences included memories of professors who influenced his college days,—

"Dr. Edward Drew, the talented surgeon; Dr. Arthur M. Flack, the outstanding pathology teacher, and Dr. D.S.B. Pennock (professor of surgery), who stimulated my incentive."—

And memories of his days as a pharmacist in the Navy where he watched M.D.'s attempt to stem the flu epidemic with aspirin and cough medicine.

"I believe that the osteopathic profession made its reputation during that flu epidemic," he said, "as many patients recovered with manipulative therapy."

A fine athlete in his youth, Dr. Sullivan is slender and trim at 78. During World War I he played baseball in the semi-professional leagues and later for PCOM. Teammate Paul T. Lloyd D.O., PCOM's emeritus professor of radiology, recalled,

"Mortimer Sullivan was just as good at catching as he was at the business of being a physician."

He is also good at golf, a game he plays weekly in a foursome that has played together for 40 years. Dr. Sullivan just missed the golfer's dream of shooting his age when at age 75 he shot a 74.

Honors are not new to the quiet workman, whose colleagues hold him in high regard as a gentleman, accomplished physician and radiologist. In 1969 he was selected General Practitioner of the Year by the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Sur-
geons and received a Certificate of Honor from PCOM's Alumni Association in 1972.

It was with gentle humility that Mortimer Sullivan D.O. accepted PCOM's highest award—a fitting honor for a man whose professional life has been signally marked by loyalty to his profession and to his college.

President of Philadelphia's Norman Rockwell Museum

Donald R. Stoltz, D.O., '61 and his brother Marshall have been enthusiasts of Norman Rockwell ever since their elementary school days. They treasured his many illustrations and eventually began saving Saturday Evening Post covers as a hobby.

It was, therefore, no surprise when the two brothers recently announced the opening of a museum in Philadelphia dedicated to the works of the famous American artist and illustrator. The Norman Rockwell Museum, located at 6th and Walnut Streets in Philadelphia, was opened to the public February 6, with Marshall Stoltz as curator and Dr. Donald Stoltz, president.

Dr. Stoltz is himself an illustrator and a writer who has published several medical storybooks for children. Among them are The Story of Nelson Needle, The Story of Tommy Toilet, How Dad and Mother Made My Brother, and The Boy with Green Spots, a coloring book used in the pediatric departments of several hospitals. Prior to entering PCOM, he had been active in the Boy Scouts and became interested in Norman Rockwell's Scout calendars.

In 1973, the doctor made a trip to Stockbridge, Mass. to visit Norman Rockwell and to present him with a set of his illustrated children's books. It was this meeting that set the stage for the publishing of the three volume set of Saturday Evening Post covers—Norman Rockwell and the Saturday Evening Post—and that eventually led to the opening of the museum.

Recalls Marshall Stoltz, "We never dreamed that one day we would sit with Norman Rockwell in his Stockbridge studio and tell him about a plan we had to open a museum in Philadelphia. In fact, we never thought he would take the time to see us. He must be getting phone calls from people with all sorts of ideas from all over the country. Not only did he say, 'come up to Stockbridge,' but he gave us such a warm welcome that an observer would think that we were more important than he."

The museum, located in the Curtis Building, where for many years the Saturday Evening Post was published, contains reproductions of most of the artist's works.

Both brothers live with their families in northeast Philadelphia, where Dr. Stoltz also maintains a general practice.

Orlando General's Youngest Chief of Staff

Things began changing at Orlando General Hospital, Orlando, Fla., as soon as Gregory P. Samano D.O., '72 joined the staff in mid-1973. Dr. Samano, a Winter Park, Fla. physician, was the first young doctor hired by the hospital in many years, but at least 10 others have followed since then. Today, as the youngest chief of staff in Orlando General's history, the doctor is continuing the push for positive, open-minded change in administrative philosophy and professional practice in his new domain.

Dr. Samano, 29, came to Orlando General immediately after his internship at Zieger-Botsford Hospitals in Detroit, Mich. As chief of staff, he has already launched several projects which he hopes will have far-reaching effects. He is supervising the reorganization of his administrative staff in an effort to streamline the hospital's committee structure. At the same time he is trying to promote greater unity among professional personnel and maintain the accent on youth started by his own breakthrough.

In addition, Orlando General has established several programs aimed at generating better community relations. These include a six-week prenatal course which meets once a week and runs continuously throughout the year. Another community service program is a "Cafe Coronaries"
Dr. Samano is presently working with the Central Florida Heart Association to arrange Central Florida’s first “Open Forum on Strokes” seminar for presentation to the public sometime in the next two months.

Hospital expansion is another area of prime concern for the new chief of staff. Dr. Samano says Orlando General has been filled to its 100-bed capacity since January 1, and it has received national approval to start an externship program by the first of July. With these projects in mind, the hospital has purchased 40 acres of land adjacent to its present site and hopes to have a concrete plan for expansion by the end of the year. Dr. Samano would like to see the hospital’s capacity surpass 200 beds by 1978, with room for the educational program to expand to include internship studies.

Small wonder, then, that Dr. Samano will not renew his tenure as president of the District Three Florida Osteopathic Medical Association. He feels, he says, that he will have enough to keep him busy.

Phoenix General’s Answer to Jim Ryan

To Arthur J. Mollen, D.O. ’70, jogging is more than a passing fad. It is an important form of preventive medicine which he preaches to his patients and practices himself.

Dr. Mollen, a general practitioner on the staff of Phoenix General Hospital, began jogging over two years ago and now has an established reputation in Phoenix for his ideas on physical fitness. A “fun run” which he organized in September has since increased its membership from six to 60 and now meets every Sunday under the name of the Arizona Marathon Society.

Explains Dr. Mollen, “This group running concept started in Honolulu, where some 600 people now gather regularly. I joined a similar group session several months ago in San Diego and got the idea of starting a marathon society here in Phoenix. I’d like to see hundreds of people take to running. It’s great preventive medicine.”

The doctor begins his day at 5 a.m., jogging an average of 10 miles each day. He firmly believes that people of all ages can benefit from running or jogging, provided one exercises daily and is under the guidance of a physician. He considers rowing the best of all exercises for building cardiopulmonary strength, but for endurance he prefers distance running.

So run he does. On Heart Sun-

day, February 29, both Dr. Mollen and his cousin ran 20 miles as part of a fund-raising effort for the American Heart Association. Area residents donated over $1000 to the association as a result of the publicity generated. And the doctor was able to spread the word on the benefits of physical exercise.

Dr. Mollen is also an ardent marathon participant. (A marathon is by definition a run of 26 miles, 385 yards in length). Last year he entered the Santa Barbara Marathon in California and the Fiesta Bowl in Phoenix, in which he ran the fastest time of any physician on record—3 hours and 34 minutes. This April the doctor traveled to Boston to run in the well known Boston Marathon.

The doctor, a native of Pennsylvania, graduated from Temple University and PCOM and interned at Phoenix General. He is currently vice president of the Arizona Osteopathic General Practitioners. He was recently nominated by the Phoenix Jaycees as one of the three outstanding young men in the Phoenix community.

Besides authoring a book on running—An Hour a Day Keeps the Doctor Away—which is soon to be published, Dr. Mollen has recently become involved with another project which he hopes will motivate more people to jog—a movie entitled Run for Your Life. The doctor has already written the script and hopes to enlist the necessary financial support from the President’s Council on Physical Fitness. Both Jessie Owens, Olympic gold medalist who also lives in Phoenix, and Chris Evert, top women’s tennis star, have agreed to be in the movie, and Dr. Mollen is optimistic that this is only the beginning.
1931
William Ellis, Tarentum, Pa.—was the subject of a feature article in the Valley News Dispatch, published in Tarentum. Dr. Ellis, who retired from practice in 1972, is a nationally known nutritionist who lectures throughout the country on the ills of artificial food additives and improper diets.


Since retiring, the doctor has traveled to Ireland, the Soviet Union and Switzerland to meet with top nutritionists. In November he will visit Japan, Korea, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Phillipines.

Dr. Ellis, who hopes to persuade people to think in terms of preventing disease by eating only naturally grown and processed food, has been working on his nutrition-based philosophy of medicine for the past 40 years.

1939
Raymond M. Chaitin, D.O., of Brooklyn, N.Y.—promoted to assistant professor of psychiatry at New York’s Downstate Medical School. In addition, Dr. Chaitin serves as full-time attending psychiatrist at Kings County Hospital. He is board certified in psychiatry and is a fellow of the American College of Legal Medicine, the American Academy of Psycho-Analytic Physicians and the International Academy of Geriatrics.

1946
Whitlaw Show, Bird-in-Hand, Pa. —is the only osteopathic physician/coroner in the state of Pennsylvania, according to the most recent listing of the Pa. State Coroners Association. Dr. Show has served as deputy coroner for Lancaster County for over 10 years.

Dr. Show, who has been a member of the staff at Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital since 1947, was named General Practitioner of the Year by the American College of General Practitioners (ACGP) in 1960. He is also the first physician in Pennsylvania to be named a fellow by the ACGP and continues to hold the status of having the longest membership in this organization in Pennsylvania.

Among other honors received by the doctor are outstanding alumnus of Kent State University and Pennsylvania Doctor of the Year. He has held office in the Lancaster County Osteopathic Medical Society, the ACGP and the Pennsylvania County Coroners Association.

1948
Alfred A. Grilli, Pittsburgh, Pa.—named to the Pennsylvania State Board of Osteopathic Examiners by Governor Milton J. Shapp. Dr. Grilli, president of PCOM’s Alumni Association, has been a member of AOA’s board of trustees since 1969. He is also a member of the board of the Pennsylvania Osteopathic Medical Association and is chairman of several association committees.

Dr. Grilli is executive director and a member of the board of trustees at West Allegheny Hospital, where he also serves as chairman of the department of surgery. He is a commissioner and corporate member of Pennsylvania Blue Shield and is a board member of the Allegheny County PSRO and Southern Allegheny County Hospital Association.

The doctor maintains a private practice in Pittsburgh.

1951
Walter W. Schwartz, Broomall, Pa.—elected chief of the medical staff at Tri-County Hospital. Dr. Schwartz is chairman of the hospital’s department of internal medicine and also serves as director of the intensive and coronary care unit. He completed a two-year residency in internal medicine at the Hospital of PCOM as well as a two-year teaching fellowship in cardiovascular disease, sponsored by a National Public Health grant.

1956
S. Paul Sadick, Trenton, Mich.—elected chairman of the medical staff at Riverside Osteopathic Hospital. Dr. Sadick completed a residency in general surgery at Riverside Osteopathic and a fellowship in surgery at the Hand at Nanterre, France.

1959
Willard L. Noyes, Allentown, Pa. — joined in partnership with Robinson G. Fry, ’56 in the practice of general, vascular and thoracic surgery with offices on the second floor of Allentown Osteopathic Hospital. Dr. Noyes completed a four-year surgical residency at Allentown Osteopathic and at Sacred Heart Hospital. He had maintained a general practice in Thompson, Pa. before returning for specialty training and served as president of the medical staff at Barnes-Kasson County Hospital in Susquehanna from 1969 to 1970.

1963
Robert G. Binder, Voorhees, N.J.—re-elected president of the 140-member medical staff of John F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital in Stratford, N.J. Dr. Binder, a general practitioner, is the first medical staff chief to serve a second term since the hospital opened in 1965. He is township physician for Voorhees and is a member of the Jewish Family Service board of directors. He holds membership in the American College of General Practitioners, the Camden County Osteopathic Medical Society and the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons.

1964
F. Kenneth Shockley, Stratford, N.J.—elected vice president of the medical staff of John F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital in Stratford, N.J. Dr. Shockley, a urological surgeon, completed his residency at Cherry Hill Medical Center. He is a member of the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons and of the New Jersey, Pennsylvania and American Osteopathic Associations.

1966
John T. Barbagiovanii, Marlton, N.J.—elected secretary of the medical staff of John F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital in Stratford, N.J. Dr. Barbagiovanii completed a residency in anaesthesiology at Cherry Hill Medical Center. He is a member of the American College of Osteopathic Anesthesiologists, the American, New Jersey and Camden County Osteopathic Medical Associations.
1969
Guy A. Buonincontro, Cherry Hill, N.J.—elected treasurer of the medical staff of John F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital, Stratford, N.J. Dr. Buonincontro is a general practitioner and a member of the New Jersey and American Osteopathic Associations.

1970
Jay D. Bayer, Greencastle, Pa.—opened a private practice in Greencastle. Dr. Bayer served as full-time emergency physician at Harrisburg Hospital from 1971 to 1975 and was named acting director of the hospital in 1973. He has been the physician for Harrisburg area schools since August 1975 and is the director of the Baker Nursing Home in Camp Hill and of the Annville Hill Farm in Annville.

1973
Rupert Hartmann, Delran, N.J.—joined the department of medicine at Rancocas Valley Hospital, Willingboro, N.J. Dr. Hartmann completed a year’s internship at Metropolitan Hospital in Philadelphia.

1974
Mark I. Ackerman, Leeper, Pa.—is the first physician named to the staff of the Kahle Medical Center, Inc., in accepting his position at the medical center.

Morris E. McCray, Chester, Pa.—recently opened a family practice in Chester, Pa. Dr. McCray completed a year’s internship at the Hospital of PCOM.

Dr. Hartmann

Dr. McCray

Dr. Mercer

The College of Physicians of Philadelphia, founded in 1787, is one of the oldest and most prestigious medical organizations in the country. It is a center for continuing medical education and meetings of physicians and health-related groups, and its library serves as one of 11 in the nationwide regional medical library system.

In addition to serving as dean, Dr. England is professor of anatomy and of osteopathic principles and practice. He is an elected fellow of the American Academy of Osteopathy, the American College of General Practitioners and the American School Health Associa-
Dean England has been appointed to the advisory board of Lankean School, a private school in Philadelphia.

Fairman L. Denlinger, D.O., '53 chairman and professor of obstetrics and gynecology, was elected to the board of trustees of the American College of Osteopathic Obstetricians and Gynecologists at the association's most recent meeting in Dallas, Texas.

Dr. Bradford has been appointed to the advisory board of Lankean School, a private school in Philadelphia.

In January PCOM played host to a meeting of the Physiological Society of Philadelphia, the oldest physiology society in the United States. The meeting, held for the first time at PCOM, was chaired by Domenic A. DeBias, Ph.D., chairman of physiology and pharmacology and former president of the society. Spencer G. Bradford, D.O., '42 professor of physiology and assistant dean for basic sciences, gave the opening welcome.

Among those members of PCOM's faculty who have been members of longstanding in the society are: Domenic A. DeBias, Ph.D.; Spencer G. Bradford, D.O.; and M. H. F. Friedman, Ph.D., visiting professor of physiology. Several other members of the faculty have recently been inducted.

Dr. DeBias co-authored an article entitled "Effects of Carbon Monoxide Inhalation on Ventricular Fibrillation," which appeared in a recent issue of Archives of Environmental Health. Among other authors was Charlotte H. Greene, Ph.D., instructor in physiology.

Martin B. Goldstein, D.O., assistant professor of psychiatry, will be among six M.D.'s, D.O.'s and Ph.D.'s on the faculty of a symposium on May 22, sponsored by the American College of Neuropsychiatrists at the Holiday Inn on City Line.

Dr. Goldstein writes that the program should be of particular interest to D.O.'s in that a sociologic study entitled "Practice Orientation in Relation to Diagnosis and Therapy of Psychiatric Patients" will be presented—"the first hard-core scientific study comparing D.O.'s and M.D.'s as to diagnosis and therapy of patients. The results and conclusions," says Dr. Goldstein, "are very favorable toward osteopathic medicine and its quest to remain a unique entity. This is a presentation that will make every D.O. proud to hear conclusive sociologic evidence of uniqueness, equality at least and superiority at best with allopathic physicians."

Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., president, served as keynote speaker at the fourth annual mid-winter seminar of Community Hospital, South Broward, Florida.

Edward A. Slotnick, D.O., '66 clinical associate professor of gynecological endocrinology, received the Purdue Frederick Lecture Award for a paper that he presented at the recent meeting of the American College of Osteopathic Obstetricians and Gynecologists. The paper was entitled "The Dilemma of Hormonal Therapy."

Dr. Slotnick, who was named a senior member of the college, served as a member of a panel on infertility and discussed the surgical correction of tubal and ovarian factors in infertility. The doctor is on the staff of Cherry Hill Medical Center.
Daniel P. Donovan, D.O., '26, of Bayonne, N.J., died December 1. Dr. Donovan had maintained a general practice in Bayonne for 49 years.

He was a member of the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons and served as the police surgeon for Bayonne since 1958. He was also a member of the board of directors of the Pamrapo Savings and Loan Association.

Dr. Donovan is survived by his wife, Helen; two daughters, Mrs. Joseph Morrison, of McLean, Va., and Mrs. Anne Whalen, of Jersey City.

Dr. Weston Werst '27, of Bethlehem, Pa., died January 8 at his home. He was 71. Both Dr. Werst and his wife, Dr. Jennie Marmora Werst '27, had maintained a practice in Bethlehem for the past 43 years.

Twenty-five years ago, Dr. Werst, who had graduated from PCOM in 1927 and practiced ophthalmology, which became his specialty. A native of Bethlehem, Dr. Werst graduated from Bethlehem schools. He was a member of St. Anne's Catholic Church, its choir and Holy Name Society; the Musician's Union; the Elks; the Lions and the MORA Club and its orchestra. He was also a member of the Atlas Medical Society.

Besides his wife Jennie, Dr. Werst is survived by a son, Weston H., of Norwalk, Conn.; two daughters, Mrs. Joseph Morrison, of Bethlehem, and Mrs. James Seigman, of Kileen, Tex.; four brothers: Kenneth, of Yardley; Lee and Henry, both of Sarasota, Fla., and Franklin, of New Jersey; 13 grandchildren and one great-grandson. His wife's sister, Mrs. Alice Dutcher, is a nurse epidemiologist at PCOM's Barth Pavilion.

John E. Devine, D.O., '28, of Ocean City, N.J., president of PCOM's Alumni Association from 1954-1955, died March 8. He was a respected physician and dedicated civic leader in the community of Ocean City.

Dr. Devine was a member of the medical staff of Shore Memorial Hospital in Somers Point, N.J. He was a member of the medical staff of Surf Hospital, now Mercy Hospital, in Sea Isle City.

Dr. Devine was an active member of several osteopathic professional organizations. He served as president of the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons (NJAOPS) and as a life member of both the NJAOPS and the American Osteopathic Association (AOA). On several occasions he served as a member of the AOA's House of Delegates and represented New Jersey at three of its annual conventions.

He was a member of the American College of General Practitioners in Osteopathic Medicine and Surgery, a past president of the Cape May County Osteopathic Association and a member of the Atlantic County Osteopathic Medical Association.

Dr. Devine was also an active participant in community affairs, having served as president of the Ocean City Chamber of Commerce.

Surviving are his wife, Ruth Eppenhimer Devine; a son, John Edmund Devine, a Ph.D. candidate at Johns Hopkins School of Medicine.

John J. Morris, D.O., '44 died in November at Bloomsburg Hospital after a brief illness. He was 75.

Dr. Morris had maintained a private practice in Benton, Pa. for over 31 years. He was a member of the medical staff at Bloomsburg Hospital and retired as physician at the Benton area schools in 1975 after more than 20 years of service. He was also deputy coroner of Columbia County.

Lewis G. Torrieri D.O. '44, Upper Darby, Pa. died February 25 at the age of 65. He had served as a part-time member of PCOM's faculty for 31 years.

Dr. Torrieri rose from assistant to associate professor in the department of anatomy, serving as lecturer in embryology and assistant to Dr. Edwin H. Cressman in the histology laboratory. He is remembered for the practicality of his lectures and his research on the placenta. He was also the author of a Manual of Human Embryology.

Born in New York City, Dr. Torrieri attended schools in Yonkers and received his bachelor degree from Manhattan College, N.Y. He completed an internship at St. Clair Hospital, New York and served a residency in surgery at Wickersham Hospital.

He was honored in 1975 with a Delaware County award for outstanding interest in patients and in the community. His memberships included the AOA, the POMA and Delaware Valley Stream Association.

Dr. Torrieri is survived by his
wife, the former Rose Lombardo, and two children, Gloria and Lewis Torrieri.


Dr. Baba, an obstetrician and gynecologist, graduated from Rutgers University. He completed an internship at Detroit Osteopathic Hospital and was a member of the Riverdell and Saddle Brook Hospital staffs. He was also associated with the New Milford Physicians Group.

Dr. Baba was a member of the AOA, the New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons, the faculty of the New York Postgraduate College of Osteopathic Medicine and the New York Society of Anesthesiology.

He is survived by two daughters—Robin, 14, and Susan, 16.

James P. Walsh, D.O., '67 died February 3 in Veterans Administration Hospital in Wilkes-Barre, Pa. He was 42.

Dr. Walsh, a native of Kingston, Pa., was examining physician for Wyoming Valley West School District and a member of the board of directors of Knights of Columbus Credit Union. He graduated from King's College and PCOM and interned at Allentown Osteopathic Hospital.

Surviving the doctor are his widow, the former Alice Delaney; children Daria, Christina and Nora; brothers Joseph and Edward and sister Mrs. John Alpaugh.

Martin Levitt, D.O. '67, Oaklyn, N.J., died October at Philadelphia's Albert Einstein Medical Center, Northern Division.

Dr. Levitt was a 1955 graduate of Philadelphia College of Pharmacy and Science and operated a pharmacy in Westmont, N.J. from 1956 until 1963, at which time he enrolled at PCOM. Following graduation he opened an office in Collingswood, N.J.

Dr. Levitt served in the Navy during World War II, rising from midshipman to the rank of lieutenant commander. He was a member of the Rho Chi Society of Pharmacy and the American Legion Tatem Shields Post #17. He was also Woodlyne School physician from 1967 to 1975.

He is survived by his wife, the former Norma Overbeck; a daughter, Dorothy, and a brother, Edward.

The death of Ralph W. Davis, Jr., D.O. '33, of Jacksonville, Fla., has recently come to the attention of the editors of the DIGEST. Dr. Davis died November 14, 1974 in Jacksonville.

Dr. Davis, named "Man of the Year" in 1955 by the Audubon, N.J. Rotary Club, attended his 40th class reunion at PCOM in June of 1973. He was the founder of the Gastro-enterological Society at the College in 1933 and wrote "Four Years at Sea" for the 1933 issue of the Synopsis.

Dr. Davis maintained a general practice in Jacksonville and was certified in surgery. He attended many postgraduate education programs and had studied at the Mayo Clinic, the University of Mirdio and Cornell Medical College. He was a member of the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons.

Frederick Dunton Baker, D.O., '12, of Jamaica, N.Y., died February 5.

Dr. Daniel P. Donovan '26, of Bayonne, N.J., died in December, 1975.


IN MEMORIAM
JULY 1, 1975 — JANUARY 24, 1976

John W. Allen '25
Robert E. Bachman '35
Clarence E. Baldwin '34
Roswell P. Bates '35
Charles M. Brown '20
Matthew Vincent DeCaro '46
Daniel P. Donavan '26
Thaddeus B. Ernest '38
Florence Everhart '26
Marion E. Futer Sanders '23
Dwaine L. Gedney '38
Alfred G. Gilliss '26
Richard B. Greenstein '73
Donald R. Harper '44
Arthur G. Jewell '31
Raymond Klevansky '50
Martin L. Krieger '46
Martin Levitt '66
Arthur Mckevitt '29
J. Raymond McSpirit '29
Samuel Melnicoff '27
Willard A. Shackelton '31
Gerald L. Simmers '63
Vivienne P. Sutton '58
Guinand H. William '31
Charles J. Van Ronk '12
Harry A. Weisbecker '31
Edward Whittthohn '35
Weston Werst '27

PRIOR TO JULY 1, 1975

William C. Spence, Jr. '40
A. Lloyd Reid '25
Harold M. Osborn '37
Daniel G. Zarowitz '49
Lawrence S. Robertson '29
Harold J. Leonard '29
Morgan D. Sours '32
David L. Brown '30
Daniel Varroney '52
ALUMNI SPEAK UP!

SEND US YOUR NEWS, YOUR PHOTOS, YOUR ITEMS OF INTEREST

A survey conducted in March, 1974 indicated that the most popular sections of the DIGEST are

Alumni News Briefs
and
People

The only way the editors can fill these sections is with the help of the Alumni. Please send us your news. Everything you do is of interest to your classmates.